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INTRODUCTION

i, the Chairman of the Public Accounts Committee, as authorised
by the Committee, do present on their behalf the Seventieth Report
on Para 10 of Audit Report (Defence Services), 1966 relating to the
Ministry of Defence regarding Manufacture of engir.cs

2. The Audit Report (Detence Services), 1966 wu- laid on the
Table of the House on the 28th Mar:h, 1966. The Public Accounts
Committee at their sitting held on the forenoon of 28tk October, 1968
decided to appoint a Sub-Committee consisting of the following Mem-
bers to consider in detaii the case referred to in Para it of the Audit
Report (Defence Services), 1966.

1. Shri R. K Morarka—Chairman
2. Sardar Buta Singh

3. Shri M. R. Krishna

4. Shri Sheo Narain

5 Shri F. K. Kumaran

6. Shri Om Mehta

7. Shri Gaure Murahari

8. Shri M ' Shah

3. The Sub-Commitiee examined this para in detail at their sit--
tings held on the ?1st and 22nd November, 1966.

4. The Committee considered and approved this Report at their
sitting held on the 27th January, 1967.

5. Minutes of the sittings of the main Committee and the Sub-
Committee form part of the Report (Part II®).

6. A statement showing the summary of the main conclusions/
recommendations of the Committee is appended to the Report (Ap-
pendix IIT). For facility of reference these have been printed in
thick type in the body of the Report.

.No. p.intcd‘ (OP‘. cyc‘oq-yjcd copy laid on the lele of the Houle and 6':.
copies placed in the Parii:ment Lib.ary.)

Q)



(vi)

7. The Committee place on record their appreciation of the assis-
tance rendered to them in their examination by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India.

8. They would also like to express their thanks to the officers of
the Ministry of Defence for the co-operation extended by them in
giving information to the Committee.

New Drvnr; R. R. MORARKA,
28th January, 1967. Chairmiin,

8th Magh, 1888 (S). Public Accounts Committee.




MINISTRY OF DEFENCE

Manufacture of engines—para 10, page 5 of Audit Report (Defence
Services), 1966.

In para 23 of the Audit Report, Defence Services, 1965, mention
was made about the delay in the manufacture of an air force equip-
ment, the design and development of which was entrusted to Hindus-
tan Aeronautics Limited, Bangalore Division. In connection with
the equipment, six engines of a particular make were purchased from
a foreign manufacture in 1961 at a cost of Rs. 13.57 lakhs. These
engines, however, had to be modified by the manufacturers to permit
their use in the equipment,

1.2, An agreement was entered into with the foreign manufactur-*
ers in July, 1962 for the grant of a licence for the manufacture of the
modified engine, even though the manufacturers had stated that the
engine had been tested only to a limited capacity (which was below
the level of requirement of the user) and they did not undertake
to guarantee any performance beyond that capacity. The agreement
inter-alia provided for the payment of the following accounts:—

(i) 1.2 million dollars for the grant of licence and the supply
of technical documentation.

(ii) 3.111 million dollars representing the actual expenses of
the foreign manufacturers in connection with the manu-
facture of the engines and for carrying out tests on the
modified engines.

(iii) Payment for the engines and components etc. in accor-
dance with a further contract to be concluded in June-
July, 1963.

1.3. It was realised in September, 1963 that this particular engine
suffered from certain drawbacks and that, unless it was developed
extensively, it might not be suitable. Later, in December, 1963, the
foreign manufacturers intimated the Government that even after
modifications, the engine could develop a maximum power of only
upto 85 per cent of that required by the user. It was, therefore,
decided by Government to foreclose the agreement and in March,
1964 the foreign manufacturers were requested to suspend all further
action under the agreement, .



1.4. In this connection the following payments have been sanction-

ed to the foreign manufacturers in full and final settlement of their
claims:—-.

Amount
(In lakhs
of
rupees)
Licence fee apainst the amount of 1-2 million dollars included in
the agrecment N Ve z3-80
Actua) expere¢ in connecticn with the modifications of. the
engine and for carrving out tests on the modified engines 149 33
Cost of forgings, punchings, castings and parts of the engines
require s o be purchased under the agreement 2491
Tota 16804

1.5. Besifies, eight complete engines had been purchased under this
agreevnent at a cost of Rs. 23.71 lakhs.

L6 Taking into account also the amount of Rs. 13.57 lakhs paid
tor the & e¢ngines purchased earlier in 1961 and an expenditure of
Re 4 iakhs approximately incurred by Government in August, 1962
m connertion with certain modifi.ations carried out in one of the

engines, the total outlay on this unsuccessful venture was Rs. 239. 3¢
lakhs

1.7. As no alternative use could be found by the Air Force fu
these fourteen engines. 6 of them were sent to 3 Air Force training
establishments, 4 to Hindustan Aeronautics Limited, Koraput Divi-

sion and the remaining 4 have been retained at Hindustan Aernnau-
tics Limited, Bangalore Division.

Estimates of the Project

18. The project for the manufa-ture of an air-force equipment
was first conceived in 1956 and was commenced in August, 1956, with
the assistance of an expert foreign team, The initial estimates of the
project cost was Rs. 110 lakhs which was sanctioned for the designing
and development of the equipment. Subsequently in 1961 the esti-
mate was raised to Rs. 450 lakhs and finally to Rs. 556 lakhs in 1965.



3

1.9. Explaining the reasons for increase in the estimates of ex-
penditure, the representative of the Minis'ry of Defence stated dur-
ing evidence that earlier gross under-estimate of the volume of work
involved in the project and the time it would take for its completion
was made. No provision was made in the estimate for detailed stru-
ctural tests which were necessary for the project. He added that the
first estimate did not include cost of the development of the frame.
It was decided later on that the cost of the proto-type should also be

shown against development of the equipment and not agains: produs-
tion order.

1.10. From the note furnished by the Ministrv of Defonce, the
Committee find that when the project was commenced the expendi-
ture on the construction of two proto-typ~s was est'mated at Rs. 109
lakias. In 1959 the estimate was raised to Rs. 144 lakhs. The increase
of Rs, 35 lakhs was attributed to the increased cost of imported
machinery, machine tools, equipment etc. This was brought to the
notice of the Defence Committee of the Cabinet in a paper dated 9th

February 1959, secking approval of D.C.C. for proceeding further witb
the project.

111, In 1961, however, the estimate for the design and develop
ment of the equijment was reviced to Rs. 450 lakhs. 1t has been
stated in the 7nte that “the earlier estimate of Rs. 144 lakhs was
prepared at a timi2 when H.A.L. la-ked experience in the design and
development of the ................ (equipment required). The
................ (foreign experts) who helped H.A L. in_the pre

paration of estimates, were not also conversant with the Indian con-
ditions.”

1.12. It has been stated in the note that under some headings the
expenditure in the estimates increased considerably e.g. the expen-
diture on de-.gn development increazed from Rs. 25.30 lakhs in
1959 estimates to Rs. 104.64 lakhs in 1963* estimates and Rs. 136 lakhg
in 1965 estim-tes. Similarly, the expenditure on tes‘s specimen in-
cluding Davelupment increased from Rs. 12.03 lakhs in 1959 estimate
io Rs. 75.05 lakhs< in 1963 es.imate and Rs. 95 Iakhs in 1965 estimate.
There are also cons‘derable variations under other sub-heads. Ex-
penditure on ‘est trials including research and development for test
laboratory was put at Rs. 3405 lakhs in 1963 estimate and Rs. 110
lakhs in 1965 estimate. Details of variations are at Appendix I.

*Note n o ve-ted bv Audir.
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1.13. The Ministry have in their note also stated that according to
-the foreign expert, with the H.A.L., estimate of Rs. 450 lakhs given
-in 1963 on the design and development of the equipment contem-
plated to be manufactured, “compared favourably with the expendi-
ture in more advanced countries in similar projects and could be
considered quite reasonable.” The revised estimate of Rs. 450 lakhs
was submitted to the Emergency Cabinet Committee in a paper
dated 29th May, 1963 and was approved by the Committee at their
meeting held on 17th June, 1963.

1.14. The Committee consider it most unfortunate that such an
-unrealistic estimate of the project was drawn up. The estimate of
this project went up from Rs. 110 lakhs in 1956 to Rs. 556 lakhs in
'1965. The Committee are not convinced of the reasons advanced by
the Ministry for not assessing properly the estimates of the expendi-
ture at the initial stage and for its frequent upward revisions. The

_ “Committee are surprised to note the plea of lack of experience given
‘by fhe witness as one of the primary causes for these upward revi-
-sions. The Committee cannot understand why such a complicated
-project was taken up without the necessary help of competent tech-
‘nicians to assess the job requirements and financial implications
thoroughly. The Committee feel that the initial estimates prepared
in 1956 were based on inadequate data and insufficient understanding
.of the details of this complicated project.

1.15. The Committee also feel that the Defence Committee of the
-Cabinet should have been apprised of this increase in the cost of this
project and their approval of the revised estimate should have been
obtained in 1961 when the estimates rose from Rs. 110 lakhs to Rs. 450
lakhs and should not have waited till 1963. For this long delay the
.Committee have been given no explanation.

1.16. The Committee desire that in future projects where the revis.
ed estimate exceed the original estimate beyond a prescribed percen-
tage/amount, the work should normally be proceeded with after ob-
taining the prior approval of the authority which sanctioned it initial-
ly. The Committee would also emphasise the necessity of preparing
initial estimates more realistically and scientifically so that their up-
‘ward revision at a later stage is avoided as far as possible. They
would also like that suitable instructions should be issued in this
vegard to all the Ministries,

Agreement with a foreign private company

1.17. According to the programme-of work laid down, it was ex- '
-pected to complete the first proto-type in 1960-61 and the second
in 1962. The equipment was proposed to be built with an engine to
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be developed by a foreign private company in its own factory and
the frame to which it was to be fitted was to be built in India. Since
the particular engine required was not expected to be developed
before 1959 or 1960, it was considered necessary to divide the scheme
in two phases. For the first phase another engine tested upto certain

ranges was to be used which was to be further developed for going
to higher ranges.

1.18. The Committee were informed that the time schedule and
financial estimates in this case were drawn up in consultation with
a foreign expert with the Government company in India. During
evidence the Committee enquired about the power plant in view
when the project was conceived in 1956. The witness replied that an
engine of a higher speed being developed by a private foreign com-
pany was to be acquired for the purpose. The witness added that an
agreement with that company had already been concluded for the,
manufacture of a series of engines of a particular make. The agree-
ment started with the engine which was the power plant for another
equipment and under the terms of agreement the Governmeat of
India was entitled to a right for the manufacture of the engine still
under development with the company. The witness stated that the
frame designed was meant to take that engine as its power plant.
He added that the project of making the frame was started in antici-
pation and in the hope that when that engine was completed, they
would get it on the same terms for manufacture in this country.

1.19. As the engine was required to achieve a certain specified
power, the Committee enquired whether there was any guarantee
from this company that the engine would be capable of achieving the
desired power. The witness replying in the affirmative added that
the parameters of the engine were such that it was designed to
achieve that power. The witness in reply to a further question stated
that under the agreement the Government of India had a right to
manufacture the engine after it had been developed and completed,
but there was no provision that the manufacturer “should develop
and give us an engine for our requirements, where they are not doing
it in the.normal course of business.”

1.20. The equipment (frame and the machine) was expected to
give a trial in 1961 in its I phase and in 1962 in its II phase and the
schedule for the same was fixed accordingly. The Committee en-
quired whether at the time of fixing the schedule it was ensured that
the engine would be available for the frame which was being design-
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ed by the Government owned company in India and whether thege
was any specific understanding with the foreign private company te
the effect that the engine would be available in time.

The witness stated that ‘the schedule of development available'
with the Ministry, indicated that ‘there was a reasonable prospect of
getting that engine’ The witness added that since the engine was
under development “we proceeded to develop the frame in the hope
tha! the engine would become available to us” and “under the agree-
ment if the development had been successfully completed we would
have the right to have it given to us for manufacture and adoption.”

1.21. The Committee then asked if it was correct that it was decid-
ed to develop the frame for being fitted with an engine and the engine
was not developed or the development of which was given up after-
wards for some reason over which the Indian Government had no
control. The witness said, “that is correct,” and added that in 1956
‘'that was the only engine which if developed, suited the Indian re-
quirements. There was no other engine whi_h had been developed
and was available to India. The Committee asked how far it was
a prudent decision to go ahead with the preparation of the frame and
based on an engine the development of which had not taken place
anywhere in the world and on the development of which Government
of India had no control. The Secretary, Defence (Production) ex-
pressing his opinion said, “It is the only way to catch up with the
advances which have been made in more modern countries.” The
Joint Secretary, Ministry of Defence, however, stated that another
reason for adopting that procedure could be, which must have weigh-
ed with those who took that decision, that it was beyond the coun-
try’s financial resources to undertake both the major projects—
development of the engine and the frame.

1.22. Asked whether under the agreement the Indian Government
could ask for any compensation from the private company when they
abandoned the scheme, the witness replied in the negative and added
that when the company decided to abandon that engine, the question
of its continuing development of that engine was taken up with them.
The company stated that the engine was not required for their pur-
pose and that they could, however, continue the development but
from that stage from which it was abandoned, the Indian Govern-
ment would have to bear the entire expenditure, which the witness
added, was very high.

1.23. In reply to a question, the Committee were informed that the
final proposal in regard to the agreement with a private foreign com-
pany was put up to the Cabinet in'September, 1960. The Committee
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then specifically asked if the Cabinet decision was taken only after
the company had given up the development of the engine required
for the Indian use. The witness replied in the affirmative and added
What in 1959 it was clearly made known to them that the foreign com-
pany had abandoned the project. It was, therefore, necessary to con-
sider as to what was to be done. One obvious thing was to ask the
company to continue and make payment to them from that stage on-
wards. The witness added that the company had in the offer of
March, 1959, estimated the expenditure to the tune of £ 4-55 million.
The company had also given the period of development and supply
as about 5 years from that point of time. Due to subsequent discus-
sions held with the company it was indicated by the company in July,
1960, that certain amount of work should be done by the company in
their own country and after development of the engine had been
achieved to a particular stage, it should be taken up in India. Such
an agreement was likely to reduce the sterling expenditure to about
£1'7 million. The witness stated that the above proposal was sub-
mitted to the Cabinet in September, 1960.

1.24. In the‘r written note, the Ministry of Defence have stated
that at their meeting held on 14th September, 1960 the Defence Com-
mittee of the Cabinet approved the proposal to develop the engine ag
a power plant for the equipment in collaboration with the foreign
company. The Defence Committee also proposed “that in the course
of negotiations, suitable finan-ial indemnity should be sought from
the............ (company) in case the............ (engine) was not
successfully developed, or that alternatively the.......... (company)
should be persuaded to agree to make the development agreement a
joint venture.” Negotiations were taken up with the company, but
they were not prepared to accept either of the two alternatives. The
company, therefore, formally withdrew their offer in their letter of
28th April, 1961.

1.25. The Committee are surprised to note that the development
of a project involving more than a crore of rupees, even in the first
estimate, was undertaken without ensuring that the power plant
(engine) required for the frame would be available. The develop-
ment of the frame was started in 1956 and schedule for completion of
the project by 1961-62 was drawn up on an assumption that there
was a reasonable prospect of getting the engine from a private foreign
company. This private foreign company was under no contractual
obligation to develop this particular engine for use by the Govern-
ment owned company in India. The private foreign company was
to supply. this engine in caze they developed it in the normal caurse



of their business. This private foreign company gave up the deve-
lopment of this particular engine in 1959 and formally withdrew
their offer in April, 1961 and the Indian company was left without
the much needed power plant for the frame. This resulted in a con-
siderable delay in the execution of this project. The Committee con-
sider it rather amazing that such a complex and costly project was
taken up without binding in any way the private foreign company
for the supply of the required engine, This, the Committee feel,
introduced an element of uncertainty in this project from the very

beginning.

Agreement with a foreign manufacturer of another country for the
manufacture and purchase of engines.

Agreement of 18th August, 1961.

« 1.26. During the second quarter of 1961 the Government of India
received information that two types of engines were available in
another foreign country, which might be suitable as a power plant for
the cquipment to be manufactured. It was stated that the enquiries
were first made when an Indian delegation went to that country in
February, 1961. As the details furnished by the foreign authorities
were not comprehensive, a technical team of experts was sent to that
country. The team remained there from 18th July, 1961 to 19th
August, 1961.

1.27. During eviden-e it was stated that this team of technical ex-
perts was composed of “the best specialists in relation to engines and
assessment of performances.” The team was sent with the purpose
of finding out whether the foreign manufacturer had an engine which
could be developed to achieve the required perofmance and to pur-
chase six engines so that development work on the frame could be
undertaken. The Secretary, Defence (Produ-tion) added that the
delegation was able to find an engine, which could be developed to
achieve the required speed.

1.28. The tdam was also asked to assess the prima-facie suitability
of the engines and willingness of the foreign Government to enter

fnto a manufacturing agreement.

1.29, The Secretary Defence (Production) disclosed that after
having a look at the engines and having gone into various details, the
feam sent an expert back to India to discuss the matter with the
mdDedetbokmo-afwdgnupmmtheemphydtho
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Government of India. After the discussion it was assessed that the
modifications that would be necessary in the engine, could be carried
out in India,

1.30. The Committee also find that the leader of the Indian team
after discussions with the foreign authorities, reported on 5th August,
1961, as follows:—

“The engine is technically very sound and it has certain fea-
tures which make it superior.......... However, we feel
that the frame will have to be modified as well as to lesser -
extent the engine itself to permit satisfactory installation.
We do not visualise these problems to be insurmountable
.............. We are, therefore, confident that our aim
would be fulfilled.”

1.31. The contract for the first six engines was concluded on 18th
August, 1961 for carrying out a study of the modifications required
and instal them in two proto-types after modification. A contract
was also concluded on 18th August, 1961 for the deputation to India
of three foreign spe-ialists “for rendering technical assistance for
modification in mastering of the engine.”

1.32. During evidence it was stated that on arrival in India, the
foreign experts after several weeks’ study and having examined the
question in detail came to a conclusion that the modifications could
not be carried out here and that the same would have to be done in
the foreign country. A-cording to the foreign experts the nature of
modfications was su-h that a modified engine was required to be
made for fitting into the Indian frame. The witness added that “in
fact, the modifications were considerably more than what was assess-
ed by our team in 1961.”

1.33. Asked why the foreign experts did not express that view
before they came to India, the witness replied that “they were not
aware of our capabilities.” He also added that the foreign experts,
in 1961 had no direct contact with the Indian experts in the field of
production of airforce equipment.

1.34, Asked whether the foreign experts indicated the extent of
modifications to be carried out in the engine, the Ministry’s repre-
sentative stated that one of the modifications was to instal accessor-
fes at the bottom so as to permit installation of the engine without
serious modifications to the frame. But once any portion of the



engine was touched, the foreign experts felt, a whole serieg of tests
would have to be carried out because the safety of both the engine
and person who handled that was involved.

1.35. The Committee were further informed that according to the
estimate of modifications made in 1961, it was thought by the Indian
experts that those could be carried out easily with the Indian re-
sources in India and, therefore, the question of drawing up estimate
of cost involved in the modifications did not arise,

1.36. During evidence, the Committee were informed that the cost
of modifications, which were not successful, was Rs. 4 lakhs.®* The
modified engines, the Ministry’s representative added, were of no use,
except that the Indian engineers had gained a good experience. It
did not yield any direct result to their programme.

1.37. Asked what happened to the other five engines, the Minis-
try’s representative stated that two engines were modified in India.
The amount of Rs. 4 lakhs spent on experimentation included those
two engines only.

1.38. It was also stated that the remaining engines were not re-
turned, because the fore’gn manufacturer had thought that to take
engines back and modify them would require many more manhours
than the manufacture of fresh engines in that country.

1.39. The Committee regret to note that the Indian team was not
able to assess properly the modifications required in the engine nor
were they able to estimate the Indian technicians’ capabilities to
earry ont those modifications.

M0, It is also strange to note that it was only the foreign experts
who realised that if the engine was modified or touched in any way,
a whole series of tests would have to be carried out because the safety
of the engine as well as the person who handled it was involved
The Committee feel that this was a basic point which should have
-occurred to our experts even in the beginning. Further, it was again
Teft to the foreign experts to point out that the nature of modifications
in the engine was such that the same could not be carried out in
‘India and the same would have to be done in the foreign country.

*In add'tion to this exp~nditure of Rs. 4 '8khs spenr on +he madificatin cf the
“two eng'n=s out of t% 6 import™1 8s p~r Sgreement Of Avguet, 19f1 arothrr agree-
men: involvirg 8 paym'nt of 3111 mil'ion dplisrs t~ the firrign su'h rities was
made in  July, ‘1962. lhis payment of 3.111 mi'lion do'ars was 10
- be mads th tie frign suthorities in cobnection with the 8'terstion (modi:
Bcation) of the engines, test of the new engines (inc" d'ng cost production of the
engines for the test).  Against this, actus! psyment of Rs. 149°33 ﬁm was made.
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141. The under estimation of modifications in the engine and
over estimation of capabilities of the Indian technicians led to an
infructuous expenditure on the pay etc. of the foreign experts and
the Indian engineers deployed on the job.

142, The Committee also feel that since the modifications of the
engines were to be undertaken on an experimental basis it would
have been a wise course to purchase initially one or two engines

instead of six in one lot. This would have reduced the quantum of
infructuous expenditure,

Agreement of 6-7-1962.

1.43. Since the study undertaken with the help of foreign specia-
lists indicated that the modifications required were different from
the earlier appreciation made by the Indian team in 1961, assistance
of the foreign authorities was sought by the Government of India’
for carrying out the necessary modifications to the engine. At that
time it was proposed to carry out the modifications in the H.A L., with
foreign collaboration.

1.44. The foreign authorities were informed of the Indian require-
ments. When this was taken up with them on 17th Februaryv. 1962
they stated that they “saw no possibility of refixing the engine in
the way suggested by the Indian experts.”” Main objection of the
foreign authorities was that if the accessories were shifted as sug-
gested by the Indian side. a great part of the engine intimately con-
nected with the accessories would also have to be modified. That
view was not acceptable to the Indian technical experts. However,
further progress was not possible until foreign authorities agreed (a)
to the engine being modified to suit Indian requirements; (b) to
grant all possible technical assistance for carrving out the modi-
fications. Therefore, with a view to having further discussions a
second technical team. consisting of the same members. except one,
who had gone in 1961, was deputed to the country concerned in
Aovril, 1962. Following discussions with the team, the foreign autho-
rities intimated in May, 1962 of their decision to render technical aid
to the Indian partv for the production of the engines bv means of
modifications to their engine. The foreign authorities. however, in-
sisted that these modifications should be done in their own country
bv their Designers and Engineers. The foreign authorities also
anreed that they would charge for the modifications only the expen-
diture incurred by them,
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1.45. Following that decision, a team headed by an officer of the
Ministry of Defence was sent to the foreign country in June, 1962.
An agreement with the foreign authorities was concluded on 6th
July, 1962 for carrying out modifications to the engine to make it
adoptable to the Indian frame and for the grant of a lincence for the
manufacture of the modified engines in India.

1.46. The Committee have been informed in the same note that
during the discussions, preceding the conclusion of the July, 1962
agreement, an important point arose regarding the guarantee of
performance for the modified engine to be written in the agreement.
The foreign authorities regretted that they could not write into the
agreement any guarantee of performance for speeds beyond the
speed for which the engine had been tested. But they expressed the
view during the discussions that the engine was capable of better or
higher performance.

1.47. During evidence the witness stated that according to the
minutes of the discussions which the Indian team had with the
foreign experts in 1962 while the foreign authorites were not pre-
pared to write down in the agreement that the engine would reach
required performance they had given broad indications that the
engine was capable of being developed to the required speed. It was
stated that a foreign expert suggested during the negotiations for the
agreement that “the reference to the speed should be omitted, as
they had no detailed information regarding the design characterstics
of the frame.” The witness added that as recorded in the minutes
of another day viz., 21st June, 1962 another foreign expert said, “the
firm advice of the designers was that the engine will attain a perfor-
mance desired without further modifications.” The foreign expert
also stated that he would have to find out if the data available would
permit a certification for higher speed. After consulting the authori-
ties concerned, the foreign expert again confirmed “that this engine
has a large reserve and that the Indian Engineers could develop it
beyond the tested speed.”

1.48. The Committee were informed that during the discussions
a foreign expert also disclosed that the engine had already in one
trial attained a speed which was only slightly less than the spced
contemplated for the equipment.

1.49. The Committee then asked if on the basis of such a statement
agreement involving a heavy expenditure could be entered into.
The Secretary, Defence Producticn replied that “it was not a mis-
placed trust. It just happened that .in the end it failed.” He added
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that it was, however, a good experience of running an engine where

reheat was used. Such an experience, he added also accelerated the
programme of improving another engine.

1.50. The Secretary, Defence Production also added that before
entering into the contract, other countries were also contacted and it
was assessed which engine would fit the frame. He added that there
was a proposal from another private foreign firm too, but that came

much later in 1964. The terms of that firm, being too higher were
not acceptable to the Government of India.

1.51. Enquired whether it was a deliberate decision not to ask
for a guarantee for the required speed from the foreign Government.
The witness replied, “that is right,” and added that the decision was
taken on an assessment made by the Indian technical experts that
a proven engine having acquired a certain performance once or twice
could be developed to the performance desired. Moreover, according
to the practice followed by the foreign authority they were not pre-
pared to give the guarantees based on theoretical calculations.

1.52. In reply to a question, it was stated that the decision to enter
into the agreement was taken by the Defence Minister himself in
consultation with the Prime Minister and the proposal did not go
before the Cabinet Committee. The Committee were also informed
that as the Deputy Minister, Finance and the Finance Minister were
away, the Ministry of Finance could not consult them. The Finan-
cial Adviser, however, consulted the Secretary (Expenditure) and
desired that the approval of Prime Minister be taken.

1.53. The Committee enquired what was the particular reason for
deviating from the procedure in not obtaining the approval of
Cabinet Committee. The witness. explaining the background, stated
that the team which was sent in June, 1962 to negotiate the agree-
ment was given a brief that they must obtain a guarantee for the
performance desired. But due to the circumstances stated above
that guarantee was not available. The team awaited further direc-
tions in the foreign country. Since the decision to sign the agreement
or not was to be taken and communicated to the team urgently, a
deviation in the procedure was made. In reply to a query, the wit-
ness said that a telegram from the team was received on 30th June,
1962 and the instructions of the Government of India were conveyed
to them by a telegram on 5th July, 1962.
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1.54. The Committee asked whether a note was submitted to the
Prime Minister when his consent was asked for. The Secretary,
Defence Production stated that the Defence Secretary explained the
position to the Defence Minister, who in turn explained to the Prime
Minister and obtained his approval, but no note was given to the
Prime Minister. The Committee then enquired when there was an
option of two months in the agreement for bringing into force, why
the matter was not placed before the Defence Committee of the
Cabinet at least before the final concurrence was communicated. The
witness replied, “it appears that the Defence Minister’s orders were
obtained and the matter was not referred to the Defence Commitiee
of the Cabinet when the period under the contract expired which in
fact expired on 1st November, 1962.” He further added that “there
is nowhere laid down that a case which requires expenditure of a
certain amount of money and to which there is no opposition of Fin-
ance or no special comments from Finance should go to DCC.”

1.55. In reply to another question whether before signing the
agreement, the Defence Committee of the Cabinet discussed the en-
tire project with all the details before them. The Secretary, Defence
Production replied, “as far as we can see the answer is in the nega-
tive. Only at a later stage when we cancelled the agreement in 1964
then we approached the DCC.” When asked if there was any fear
that the foreign authorities would back out if the matter was delaved.
the Secretary. Defence Production said. “I would not sav that that
was the case.”

1.56. The Committee are not convinced of the reasons given by
the Ministry for not providing for a guarantee in the July, 1962
agreement as the engine for the development of which the agree-
ment was entered into, had heen tested to a speed which was much
below (about 30 per cent) the desired performance. In the absence
of any written guarantee for the engine to achieve the required
performance, the foreign authorities were not bound in any con-
tractual obligation to achieve the desired result. The Committee
also note that at an earlier stage the Defence Committee of the
Cabinet had specifically desired in connection with an agreement for
the development of an engine with a foreign private companv (a)
a suitable financial indemnity should be sought from the foreien
private company in case the engine was not successfullv developned;
(b) or alternatively the foreign private company should he persuad-
ed to agree to make the development a joint financial venture, In
view of the ahove decision of the' Defence Committee of the Cabinet
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taken in September, 1960 in the earlier case, the Committee regret
to note that the same was not kept in view and those terms were
dropped without reference to the Cabinet Committee while entering
into this agreement in July, 1962 with the foreign authorities of
another country. The Committee feel that any deviation from the
conditions laid down by the Cabinet Committee should have been
done only with the prior approval of that Committee. In view of the
fact that the tested performance of the engine was about 309, below
the desired performance and that the foreign authorities were not
prepared to give a written guarantee for the required performance it
was all the more necessary to insist upon such a guarantee in the
agreement at this stage. It is also surprising to note that before
entering into this agreement with the foreign authorities the case
was not put up to the Defence Committee of the Cabinet and it was
only in February, 1964 when the agreement was cancelled that the
case was brought to the notice of the Emergency Committee of the
Cabinet. The Committee do not find any justification for by-passing
the Cabinet Committee. They are unable to understand the circums-
tances under which ithe Cabinet Committee on Defence was by-
passed in this case.

1.57. What surprises the Committee most is the fact that because
of these two conditions laid down by the Cabinet Committee the
earlier contract was terminated, a good deal of time was lost and
then these two important conditions were dropped without any re-
ference to the Cabinet Committee while dealing with the later con-
tract with another foreign authority.

1.58. The Committee feel that the omission of the provision of the
guarantee in the agreement of July, 1962 should have been specifi-
cally brought to the notice of the Cabinet Committee before conclu-
ding the agreement. If that was not possible an earliest opportunity
thereafter should have been availed of to apprise the Cabinet Com-
mittee of the agreement and its provisions. The Committee regret
to note that firstly the agreement was not brought before the
Defence Cabinet Committce before it was concluded in July, 1962
and secondly, the earliest opportunity was not availed of to place
the agreement before the Cabinet Committee.

1.59. It is also surprising to note that though it was envisaged
that this engine could be developed to the required power, yet no
provision was made in the agreement for its further development,
nor was this task undertaken by the Indian authorities. The Com-
mittee also feel that conclusion of tl.e agreement, when the foreign
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authority declined to give a guarantee for the required performance

was one of the main factors responsible for the infructuous expen-
diture in this case,

1.60. The Committee further feel that obtaining verbal approval
of the Prime Minister for such an important project, as was done in
this case, was also not a healthy procedure to follow. Before seeking
Prime Minister’s approval for such an important project, it is essen-
tial that full facts of the case should be placed before him in the

shape of a detailed note. The Committee regret to note that this
was not done in this case.

Payments for modifications as per agreement of July, 19.2.

1.61. The Committee have been informed in a written note that a
payment of 3.111 million dollars was agreed to be made to foreign
manufacturer in connection with the modification of the engine to
suit the requirements of the Government of India for the following
work to be done in the foreign country:—

(i) Modifications of the engine according to the requirements
specified in the agreement;

(ii) production of the necessary number of engines for the-
tests; and

(iii) tests of the modified engines on the bench, and of the per-

formance of the engines and the components in the high
altitude test laboratories.

1.62. During evidence the Committee were informed that in the
estimates for modifications drawn up in 1961, it was thought by the
Indian experts that the modifications could be easily carried out
within the Indian resources. Estimates of cost involved in the modi-
fications were, therefore, not considered necessary and were hence
not drawn up. The witness added that the estimates of cost were
drawn up in February, 1962 after consultation with the team of
foreign experts. At that time the, estimate of modifications, within
the country and its resources, was about Rs. 60 lakhs. These esti-
mate did not include the cost of extensive tests which the foreign
experts insisted were necessary before the engine could be cleared
for installation. The witness added that the modifications which the
foreign experts agreed to do later were much more extensive than
those thought of earlier.
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1.63. Referring to the written note furnished by the Ministry

earlier, the Committee asked how it had been stated that the engine
being a well-proved engine was preferred to an engine yet to be
developed, when it had run to a speed which was 30% less than the
speed according to the Indian requirements. The representative of
the Ministry stated that the engine was a proved engine only upto
the capacity it had performed and added that during the discussions
the foreign authorities had stated that the engine had a performance
potential higher than it had already done. Since it had performed
to a certain capacity, the foreign authorities were not prepared to
give a guarantee for a performance higher than that. He also dis-
closed that even earlier in September, 1960 when the engine of a
private foreign company was to be acquired, the latter were not in
a position to give a definite guarantee that their engine would be
able to perform to the extent required. They only stated that its
designed parameters were such that it was expected to achieve the,
performance required for Indian use. '

1.64. The witness further added that the engine for which, an
agreement was entered into in July, 1962 had done upto a certain
performance and that the foreign authorities were quite hopeful of
its achieving the desired performance, Expressing his own opinion,
the Ministry’s Secretary stated that it was not enough test to see
that the power plant was enough for a certain performance and
added, “it merely says that the engine reached that performance
and then it was stripped to see whether any part of it was broken
or not.”

1.65. Explaining that the modifications suggested by the foreign
experts, when they were in India, were different from those indicated
by the Indian team, the witness stated that there was a change of
situation in February-March, 1962 when the foreigners, and in
August, 1961, when the Indians, assessed and communicated the
modifications. ' In February, 1962 the engine had been received in
India and the experts had both the engine and frame before them.

1.66. Asked whether it is correct to say that the Indian experts
could not make a proper assessment, the witness replied that “the
problem happened to be more complicated than it appeared to be.”
So far as the Indian experts were concerned, the witness added that
the best available talent was utilised.

1.67. In response to a query, it was stated that the modifications
suggested no doubt related to the accessories of the engine, but the
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foreign authorities, being the holder of design, had stated that they
were not in a position to guarantee the performance of the engine
unless the modified engine had been put to a complete schedule of
tests.

1.68. The Committee asked whether the modifications were such
as could be carried out in India, but were decided not to be done
here because of guarantee and test reasons. The representative of
the Ministry stated that in March, 1962, the foreign authorities were
asked for a permission to carry out the modifications and to give
technical assistance for that purpose. But those authorities felt that
the schedule of tests involved was so large and extensive and if
it was to be done within a period of 18 months, it was best to do them
in their country. The witness stated that the cost of modifications as
put in the agreement was 3.111 million dollars.

1.69. The Committee were further informed that the technical
team consisting of same members excepting one which had gone in
July-August, 1961, was sent in April, 1962, because the team was
meant to obtain the agreement to the modifications that had to be
carried out and the technical assistance required to carry out the
modifications. For that purpose, it was considered that no change
in the team was called for.

1.70. Asked whether in the modifications to be carried out in the
foreign country, any Indians were also associated, the witness re-
plied that a request was made but the foreign authorities due to
security reasons, did not agree to that.

1.71. In reply to a question, it was stated that at the time of
signing agreement in July, 1962 the foreign authorities had only
agreed that the engine would have the same performance, after the
modifications, as before. The witness added that, “the agreement
was not meant to improve the performance of the engine. It was
meant only to change the dimensions so as to permit its installation.”
When asked specifically whether there was any stipulation in the
agreement under which the foreign authorities were to try conti-
nuously to develop the engine to the desired higher speed, the wit-
ness replied, “there is no provision in the contract.” The Committee
enquired whether it was only out of good-will that the foreign
authorities tried to develop the engine and that there was no con-
tractual obligation on them, the witness said, “that is correct,” and
added “the modifications they had agreed to do were only to enable
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installation of the engine. They had not agreed to undertake any
other development. The engine as such will be given and they will
give us further test results.” The witness further added that when
the agreement was signed, the foreign authorities were not definite
that they could fulfil the assurance. “If they were,” the witness
stated, “they would have said so. In signing the agreement we con-
sciously took a certain amount of risk.”

1.72. Asked when the engine required was to achieve a specific
performance, how Government was satisfied with an engine of lower
performance without any stipulation for further improvement and
development, the witness replied that the foreign authorities were
not prepared to write in the agreement beyond the speed actually
achieved for the engine. “They were also not prepared to develop
the engine upto.......... (Indian requirements.)” The Indian tech-
nical authorities were consulted who held the view that the engine
would be able to perform to the desired higher speed. The technical.
authorities, the witness said, were the Managing Director of Govern-
ment owned company who had in turn consulted the available talent,
including a foreign engineer employed in the company.

1.73. It was stated in reply to a question that the foreign au-
thorities were informed in September. 1963 that the engine had
not come upto the expectation. The foreign authorities were ask-
ed to tell the maximum potentiality of the engine and whether
they would be prepared to develop the engine to the required per-
formance. It was added that that deliberate step was taken
because after.seeing the performance of the frame etc, the
foreign experts had stated that in their view the engine could not
reach the required higher speed.

1.74. On an enquiry made in September, 1963 the foreign authori-
tiesh informed the Government of Indiz in December, 1963 that it
was not possible to develop this engine further to a higher per-
formance as that would practically mean the development of a new
engine.

1.75. The Committee referred to the Review Committee’s opser-
vation that the guaranteed life of the engine was extremely short,
and asked if the life of the engine in between overhauls was en-
quired into and economies of its purchase in the light thereof
worked out, the witness stated that the foreign authorities could
not give an indication as to’'what the life of engine would be m
between overhauls at the higher altitudes. In the absence of that,
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the witness stated, life of the engine could not be worked out. The
Committee then specifically asked whether the absence of that in-
formation should not put the Government on guard and call for
its verification, the witness replied that so far as that was con-
cerned, “I do mot think that a detailed calculation was made on
this.”

1.76. The Commitiee regret to note that a huge payment of
3.111 million dollars was agreed to be made and in fact a payment
of Rs. 149.33 lakhs was actually made for the modifications jand;
tests which were primarily meant for the installation of the engine
in the frame rather than in any way increasing its performance.
It is all the more surprising to note that this payment was agreed
to inspite of the fact that the foreign authorities had not given
any written assurance that they would develop the engine to the
Indian requirements. Even after modifications, the performance
'of the engine in question was to be the same as before i.e. about
30 per cent below the Indian requirements,

1.77. The Commiitee also regret to note that the life of this en-
gine in between the over-hauls was not calculated so as to work
out the economies of this engine vis-a-vis the engine of the private
company, which was to be obtained earlier from the foreign pri-
vate company. The Committee feel that this should have been
done before concluding the agreement as shorter life in between
overhauls would have meant larger number of engines to meet the
same requirements and this would have increased ultimately thq
price of the engine.

1.78. The Committee canmot help observing that in the face of
the fact that the foreign authorities were not prepared to give any
guarantee to develop the engine to the required higher speed, the
assessment of the Indian technical authorities that the engine
would be able to perform to ‘the desired higher speed was over-
optimistic and lacked justifiable or scientific basis. In the opinion
of the Committee, this was a hasty step involving unreasonable.
and heavy financial risk.

1.79. Another disquieting feature of this case in that between the
date of signing the contract i.e. 6th July, 1962 and September, 1963,
no effort was made by anybody to develop the capability of this
engine to achieve the required performance. In September, 1963 the
foreign authorities were requested specifically “to undertake the
development of the .......... (engine) upto .......... (the required
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performance)”. The Committee feel that a clause regarding conti-
nuous development of the engine should have been included in the
agreement, as in the absence of the same the agreement itself was
not satisfactory and did not meet the Indian requirements. The
Committee also feel that it would have been prudent if an agreement
for the manufacture of engines had been entered into, only after a
successful trial of the modified engines duly fitted in the frame.

Payments stipulated in agreement

1.80. Under the provisions of the agreement, the Government

of India was to make the following payments to the foreign manu-
facturer:—

(i) Licence fee including cost of documen- \ 1.2 million dollars.
tation J

(if) The aciual expenses of the foreign )
manufacturer in  connection with
the modification of engine, tests of new 3.111 million dollars.
engines (including cost of production
of engines) to be used for the test.

1.81. The above payments were to be made in Indian rupees and
according to the following schedule:—

(a) First instalmeni within 15 days from 1-000 million dollars.
the date of coming into force of the
agreement,

(b) Second instalment in July, 1963. 1-000 million dollars.

(c) Third and last instalment in July, 1964. 2-311 million dollars.

Total: 4-311 million dollars.

Actual payment made

1.82. The total payments made, alongwith details, to the foreign
manufacturer are given in Appendix IIL

1.83. At the time of evidence, in regard to the payment terms in-
~ eluded in the contract, the representative of the Ministry stated
that they related to three categories; one to the value of the en-
gine: the second to the licence fee; and the third to the cost of



22

modifications. The witness deposed that the charges in regard to
engine and licence fee were reasonable in relation to other coun-
tries. Payment for cost of modifications was to be made on actyal
basis and here too the maximum limit of 3.111 million dollars was
put. The witness further disclosed that after the cancellation of the
agreement, the foreign authorities had informed that they had in-
curred expenditure over and above the amount (i.e., 3.111 million
dollars) provided in the agreement but they had not claimed that.

1.84. The Committee were informed that the final payment was
to be made only after the modifications were completed, It was
also stated that according to the ariicles of the agreement the first
payment of 1 million dollars was to be made within 15 days of the
agreement coming into force, second payment of 1 million dollars
on 1st July, 1963 and the last payment of 2.31 million dollars in
July, 1964. The witness disclosed that though the agreement was
cancelled in February, 1964, the final payment was made in Dec-
ember, *1965 after negotiations etc.

1.85. In reply to a question whether a longer credit could not be
arrangeéd, the witness stated that the foreign authorities in fact
wanted payment in advance. Only after considerable negotiations
the spreading of payment could be arranged.

1.86. The representative of the Ministry informed the Committee
that the foreign manufacturer was to supply a fixed number of
engines and sets of materials in various stages of manufacture. He
added that by the time further engines were required, the manu-
facture of engines would have been established in India, as a
licence for their manufzcture had also heen obtained.

1.87. The Committee cannot understand why such a huge
amount was agreed to be paid for the mere modification of the en-
gine which did not have the required power. The Committee are
also unable to appreciate the provisions in the agreement in
regard to the payment terms which were not related to the actual
execution of the work. The Committee feel that in the absence of
any assurance to develop the engine to the specified Indian re-
quirements the agreement was conclud¢d for the supply of an en-
gine which did not meet the requirements of the country.

Review of the selection of the engine by the Committee

1.88. The selection of the engine as the power plant for the
frame designed in India was a subject of review by a Committee
appointed in March, 1963. That Committee undertook a detailed
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assessment and pointed out that the engine did not meet the re-
quirements of the equipment to be manufactured. This Review
Committee, however, desired that the agreement with the foreign
manufacturer should not be cancelled, but should be kept under
suspension so that in the event, the development of another engine
ran into trouble, it would leave the door open to revising the pro-
ject in hand.

1.89. The report of the Committee was discussed at a. meeting
held in the room of the Defence Minister on 2-5-1963. The meeting
decided that as there was no definite power plant in  sight, the
recommendation to suspend the agreement was premature and the
agreement should, therefore. not be suspended.

1.90. Tt was also decided that it would not be appropriate to
undertake discussions with another manufacturer without inform-
ing the foreign manufacturer with whom the contract was rinning.
The Public Accounts Committee were informed in a written note
that at a further meeting held on 3-9-1963 in the Defence Minister’s
office, it was decided that the further development of the engine
to the required higher speed bo taken up with the foreign authori-
ties. This was accordingly taken up with foreign authorities on
14-9-1963. The foreign authorities on 19-12-1963 intimated to the
Government of India that it was not possible to develop the engine
to the required performance because it would pra~ticallv mean the
development of a new engine. Final discussions were held in
January and Februarv, 1964 and it was decided by the Ministry to
recommend to the Cabinet that the project should not be proceeded
with further. The Cabinet approved of the above recommendation
on 26-2-1964. The foreign authorities were informed in February.
1964 of the Government of India’s decision to foreclose the agree-
ment. The foreign manufacturers had alreadv completed bv then
manufacture of some engines. Those engines had to be accepted
and were received in India in September/October. 1964.

1.91. During evidence the Public Accounts Committee enquired
when the Committee appointed in 1963 to review the selection of
the engine, had recommended that the agreement be suspended,
why that was not done. The witness stated that the Committee
had also recommended to undertake negotiations with another
foreign manufacturing company. Since there was a subsisting
agreement with a foreign manufacturer, it was not felt proper to
have discussion with another manufacturer.

1.92. In reply to a question that when the engine had not come
up to the expectation and was not likely to serve the purpose, why
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was it considered obligatory to give prior information to them
before negotiating with another supplier, the witness replied that
the agreement was concluded for a performance to which the en-
gine had done and not for the performance required. Therefore, if
the contract was to be cancelled the other party had to be informed
of the reasons for doing so. The witness added that the agreement
was finally cancelled not on account of any default on the part of
the foreign authorities with reference to any of the provisions of
contract, it was cancelled when it had finally been known that the
engine would not give performance to meet Indian requirements
fully. It was, however, disclosed that the above recommendation of
the Committee regarding negotiations with another supplier was
accepted after exhausting the possibilities of getting the targetted
performance out of this engine. Discussions in that connection
were held with a representative of a foreign private company in
December, 1964. The witness added that it was thought better first
to make sure of the engine in hand and than to go in for another.
In regard to the project, the witness stated that that Committee had
specifically considered the question of continuing the project and
had come to a conclusion that the project should not be given up.

1.93. The Public Accounts Committee were informed that the
Committee appointed by Government had made a detailed assess-
ment of the suitability of the engine for the Indian requirements on
the basis of evidence tendered before it. In reply to a query, it
was stated th: : the st:me peonle who ware connectad with the work
gave evidence before that Committee.

1.94. It was stated that the project undertaken was the first big
Indian project for the manufacture of an air-force equipment and
the Government did not want to give it up except for the strongest
possible reasons.

1.95. The Committee feel that it was rather an unfortunate de-
cision of the Government to continue the agreement and ask the
foreign authorities to undertake further development of the engine,
after a specific recommendation of the “Review Committee” to
suspend the agreement and its clear statement that the engine did
not meet Indian requirements. When the Review Committee had
based its recommendations on the evidence tendered before it by
those who were connected with the development of the project,
there was all the more reason not to disregard the Committee’s re-
commendation, The Committee also feel that it should have been
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taken up with the foreign authorities earlier than September, 1963,
especially when the Review Committee had given its report in
April, 1963.

1.96. As the Government thought that it was not proper to nego-
tiate with another manufacturer when one agreement was in exist-
ence, the Committee feel that the best course would have been to
foreclose the agreement, immediately on receipt of Report of the
Reviewing Committee as earlier efforts to develop the engine had
been frustrated and the Review Committee had stated clearly that
the engine did not meet the Indian requirement. Such a step, per-
haps would have saved the exchequer some of the money invested
in this unsuccessful project.

Conclusion

1.97. The Committee have dealt with in detail in the preceding
paragraphs the various unsatisfactory features of the project * of
manufacture of an equipment for Air-Force. Bricfly these are as
under:—

1. In 1956, when the project for the manufacture of this
equipment was conceived, an estimate of Rs. 110 lakhs
only was prepared. It was revived to Rs. 450 lakhs in
1961 and Rs. 556 lakhs in 1965. The initial estimate of
1956 was unrealistic and based on insufficient data.

2. The development of the frame was taken up without en-
suring that a power-plant (engine) for the frame would
be available.

3. The schedule for the trial test by 1961-62 was drawn up on
the assumption that the Indian authorities would be able
to get an engine from a private foreign company with
whom they had an agreement to manufacture a series of
engines of a particular type, in case that particular com-
pany developed the same in the normal course of their
business. As that private foreign company dropped the
project of development of this engine in early 1959, the
Indian authorities were left without any engine and this
upset the time schedule of the completion of the project.

4. Six engines were purchased from another country in
August, 1961, whose tested capacity was much below the
Indian requirements; for carrying out modifications and
fitting the same in the Indian frame. The Indian team
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over-assessed their capabilities and under-estimated the
modifications necded in the engine airframe to meet
their requiremeonts.

5. Inspite of the fact that the tested capacity of the engine
was about 309, below the Indian requirements and also
the foreign expents had already initiated in February,
1962 that they saw no possibility of re-fixing the engine
in the way suggested by the Indian experts, an agree-
ment was entered into in July, 1962 with the foreign
authorities for the modifications of engines and later their
manufacture in India.

6. In September, 1960, the Cabinet Committee before whom

the case for development of an engine for its equipment

~in collaboration with the foreign private company was
put up prescribed the following conditions:

(a) a suitable financial indemnity should be sought from
the foreign private company in case the engine was
not satisfactorily developed;

(b) or alternatively the foreign private company should
be persuaded fo agree to make the development a joint
financial venture.

The above two conditions were not kept in view when an
agreement was entered into in July, 1962 with the autho-
rities of another foreign country.

7. The agreement of July, 1962 did not provide a guarantee or
any clause for the development of the engine to the
Indian requirements.

8. In July, 1962 when the agreement was entered into with the
foreign authorities in this casc, only verbal approval of
the Prime Minister was taken by the Minister of Defence
and the case was put up to the Emergency Committee of
the Cabinet only in February, 1964, when it was decided to
foreclose the agreements. It was not put up immediately
after July, 1962 either for information or for the approval
of the Defence Committee of the Cabinet.

9. A Review Committee appointed by the Government exa-
mined this engine as a power-plant for the frame and
suggested in April, 1963 that the agreement with the
foreign manufacturers should be suspended. This was not
done immediately. The foreign authorities were asked in
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September, 1963 to further develop this engine to meet
the Indian requirements. A reply was received in Dec-
ember, 1963 that it was not possible to develop the engine
to the Indian requirements. It was only in February,
1964 that a decision was taken to foreclose the agreement,

1.98. The Committee feel that the fact that the agreement of July,
1962 did not envisage further development of engine to meet the
‘Indian requirements, was mainly responsible for the major portion
of the expenditure of Rs. 237.76 lakhs on this unsuccessful venture.

"The Committee cannot but express a sense of disappointment at the
-infructuous expenditure of Rs, 237.76 lakhs incurred on this wun-
.successful venture as also the time lost in making the right selec-
tion of the engine for the equipment. The Committee also feel that
3f due care had been taken at different stages, at least a major por-
tion of this expenditure on the costly venture could have been
-avoided.

1.99. The Committee are constrained to note that apart from the
loss of money involved in this unsuccessful venture, this resulted in
abnormal delay in providing a vital equipment essential for the de-
fence of the country. The Committee are not convinced that this
situation was jrremediable. .

New DELHI; ' R. R. MORARKA,

January 28, 1967. Chairman,
Magha 8, 1888 (s). Public Accounts Committee.
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APPENDIX II
(Vide para 1-82)

Statement showing total expenditure on the Development of Engines

SL Details Amount Date on which pay-
No. ment authorised
Rs.
1. Cost of 4 engines 8,70,576°16 )
Cost of 2 engines recexved by Au' 4,43,859°29
Spare for engines 38,844 °88
Transport charges 7,824+ 21
. Clearing forwarding charges ~ 4,170°00
Cost of Mock up engine . 1,42,846-21 $Payments made by
Customs Duty . 94,690°20 HAL upto
Fabrication of slmgs equxpment 30-9-64.
etc. 1,51,334°29
Construction of storage shed of
Training Command 26,100°00
Telephone 1,154'08
Payment to Watch & Ward staﬁ' 39,631:00 J
Foreign Technicians’ Salaries
and Air passge, Lodging and
other expenses of the Tech-
ni . . . . 756,464:89
Air passage, etc. of HAL officers 77,943 ° 00
19-55 Lakhs
2. 6 ready made engines . 19-10 Lakhs 25-6-64
1 fully calibrated engine . 3-18 Lakhs 2§-6-64
4. Ist instalment of licence fee - 4’7-60 Lakhs 28-9-62
5. 2nd instalment of licence fee. 47:60 Lakhs 22-8-63
6. Cost of modification and tooling  53-33 Lakhs '5-4{65

30
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SL Details Amount Date on which pay-
No. ment authorised
7. Cost of forging, punching and Rs,
casting, etc. . . « 24°91 Lakhs 5-4-65
8. Licence fee and technical
documentation . 23-80 Lakhs 9-8-66
239-07 Lakhs
Less credit given by the foreign
manufacturer for forging
punchings after sale as scrap
metal ($ 27506) . . 131 Lakhs 20-4-66

237-76 Lakhs
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